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These notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the audit committee on 20 February 2006 

 
1 General information 
 

Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited, the “Company”, is incorporated in Thailand and has 
its registered office at 1695 Phaholyothin Road, Chatuchak, Bangkok, Thailand. 

 
The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 10 January 1990. 

 
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) 
are as follows; the Company and ten subsidiaries are in the hotel business; two subsidiaries are in 
the fast food business with restaurants serving fried chicken, donuts, pizza, pretzels and ice-cream; 
and another two subsidiaries are in the business management and floating hotel rental business.  
Another two subsidiaries are property funds. 

 
The Group primarily operates in Thailand and employs 4,918 employees as of 31 December 2005 
(2004: 4,485). The employee costs of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2005 amounted to 
Baht 1,205.1 million (2004: Baht 1,032.3 million).  The Company employs 988 employees as of 31 
December 2005 (2004: 974). The employee costs of the Company for the year ended 31 December 
2005 amounted to Baht 327.3 million (2004: Baht 292.7 million). 

 
2 Basis of preparation of financial statements 
 

The financial statements issued for Thai reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language. This 
English translation of the financial statements has been prepared for the convenience of readers not 
conversant with the Thai language. 

 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Accounting Standards (“TAS”) 
including related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting 
Professions and with generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand. 

 
In 2005, the Group adopted the following new TAS which are relevant to its operations: 

 
TAS 52 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 

 
TAS 53 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

 
TAS 54 Discontinuing Operations 

 
The adoption of these new TAS has no material effect on the financial statements. 

 
The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht. They are prepared on the historical cost basis 
except as stated in other note to financial statements. 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TAS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

 
The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company, its subsidiaries and property funds 
(together referred to as the “Group”).  Details of the Company’s subsidiaries and property funds are 
as follows: 

 
  Type of  Country of  Ownership interest 
  business  incorporation  2005  2004 

      ( % ) 
Direct subsidiaries       
Investment in subsidiaries         
Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd. 
(“CSBR”) 

 Hotel  Thailand  100.0  100.0 
 

Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (“CHM”)  Holding  Thailand  100.0  100.0 
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd. (“CKV”)  Hotel  Thailand  100.0  100.0 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. (“CKBR”)  Hotel  Thailand  100.0  100.0 
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. 
(“CHBR”) 

 Hotel  Thailand  63.9  63.9 

Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”)  Food and 
beverage 

 Thailand  100.0  84.0 

Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CWH”)  Hotel  Thailand  100.0  100.0 
Central Koh Kood Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CKH”)  Hotel  Thailand  100.0  - 
         
Property funds         
Thai Pattana Fund I  Property fund  Thailand  20.0  20.0 
Thai Pattana Fund II  Property fund  Thailand  0.01  0.01 
         
Indirect subsidiaries         
Investment in subsidiaries         
Central Sukhontha Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CSH”)  Hotel  Thailand  100.0  100.0 
Central Samui Village Co., Ltd. (“CSV”)  Hotel  Thailand  100.0  100.0 
Central Mae Sot Hill Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CMH”)  Hotel  Thailand  98.4  98.2 
Central Maritime Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CMT”)  Floating Hotel 

Rental 
 Thailand  95.3  95.3 

B - R (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“BRT”)  Food and 
beverage 

 Thailand  100.0  100.0 

Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor          
(“CMHD”)  Hotel  East Timor  95.3  95.3 
         
Property funds         
Thai Pattana Fund I  Property fund  Thailand  0.04  0.04 
Thai Pattana Fund II  Property fund  Thailand  15.24  15.24 
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At the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited No. 
1/2548, held on 16 June 2005, the resolution was passed to purchase the remaining 16% of the 
issued shares of Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) not already held by the Company 
from 2 former shareholders, which were related parties, totaling 992,049 shares. The purchase price 
is based on the value appraised by independent professional valuers, Syrus Securities Public Co., 
Ltd., by applying a Discounted Cash Flow approach. The share price calculated using the weighted 
average cost of capital was Baht 280.57 per share or fell within the range of Baht 237.14 - 338.05 
per share, from the report dated 7 April 2005. Further, the independent professional valuers 
received additional information on CRG’s actual operating results for the first quarter of the year 
2005, which were higher than previously projected, and at the ordinary shareholders’ meeting of 
CRG held on 29 April 2005, a resolution was passed to approve the dividends payment from the 
operating results for the year 2004 to the shareholders whose names appeared on the share 
registration as of that date. These factors resulted in a change to the cash flows used in the 
calculation of share price, which became Baht 289.03 per share, according to the report dated 25 
May 2005. Through use of the said approach, the appropriate price fell within the range of Baht 
243.49 - 348.94 per share, which was not considered significantly different from the proposed price 
of Baht 277.20 per share. Therefore, the financial advisor suggested that the proposed price was 
justified. The Company proposed the purchase price at Baht 277.20 per share, the total amount of 
Baht 275 million, for the remaining 16% of the total issued shares of CRG. This acquisition 
resulted in CRG becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (previously 84% owned) 
and the recognition of goodwill in the amount of Baht 143.45 million. 

 
Central Koh Kood Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CKH”) was incorporated as a limited company on 4 November 
2005 with share capital in the amount of Baht 120 million and fully paid. 

 
Although, the Company’s holdings in Thai Pattana Fund I and Thai Pattana Fund II (“Fund”) both 
directly and indirectly are 20.04% and 15.25%, respectively, the Company has control over the 
funds since the Company has authority to control and make decisions through the funds’ directors. 
The Company, therefore has treated the said funds as subsidiaries. 
 
Significant intra-group transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on 
consolidation. 

 
3 Going concern of subsidiaries 
 

A major customer of a subsidiary, Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor (“CMHD”), terminated 
its accommodation agreement on 1 June 2002. As a result, revenue decreased substantially. As at 
31 December 2005, the subsidiary had a deficit amounting to Baht 102.45 million (approximately 
US$ 2.46 million). On 1 June 2005, CMHD issued the letter to the Minister of Foreign Affairs and 
Cooperation to inform that CMHD would suspend the hotel operation as of 30 June 2005 due to the 
long length of period for vessel dry-dock. The management of CMHD decided to cease the hotel 
operation in East Timor in the 3rd quarter of the year 2005. 

 
On 2 December 2005, Central Maritime Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CMT”), a subsidiary of Central Hotel 
Management Co., Ltd., has entered into a memorandum of agreement regarding sale of the floating 
hotel to a company located in a foreign country. The floating hotel was agreed to be sold at US$ 3.9 
million. The payment is due on the day on which the ownership is transferred. CMT has reclassified 
for floating hotel to foreclosed assets, in addition, CMHD also reclassified for its equipment from 
non-current assets to current assets, foreclosed assets, to comply with liquidation basis.  
 
The Company has formally confirmed its intention to continue to provide financial support and 
funds, to enable Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd. and Central Maritime Hotel Co., Ltd. to use 
as working capital for further operation and to repay their financial obligations as and when they 
fall due in the future. 
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The financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 have been prepared on a 
going concern basis, which assumes that the subsidiaries will continue as going concern. 

 
4 Significant accounting policies  
 
4.1 Basis of consolidation 
 

Subsidiaries 
 
Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Company.  Control exists when the Company 
has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of a company so 
as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control 
ceases. 

 
4.2  Foreign currencies 
 

Foreign currency transactions 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at 
the dates of the transactions.   
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are 
translated to Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.  Foreign exchange 
differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement of income. 
 
Foreign entities 

 
The financial statements of Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor are prepared in U.S. Dollars.  
For consolidation purposes, these financial statements have been translated into Thai Baht as 
follows: 

 
- All assets and liabilities using average exchange rates of commercial banks announced by the Bank 

of Thailand at the balance sheet date. 
 
- Revenues and expenses using average exchange rates of commercial banks announced by the Bank 

of Thailand.  Net exchange gain or loss from translation is presented as “Currency translation 
reserve” and constitutes part of “Shareholders’ Equity” in the consolidated balance sheets. 

 
4.3 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-term 
investments.  Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are a component of financing activities 
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 

 
4.4 Trade and other accounts receivable 
 

Trade and other accounts receivable (including balances with related parties) are stated at their 
invoice value less allowance for doubtful accounts. 
 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and 
future expectations of customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred. 
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4.5 Inventories 
 
Raw materials and finished goods 

 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (FIFO method) and net realizable value.   

 
A subsidiary engaged in the manufacturing and sale of ice-cream products values its inventories at 
the lower of cost (moving average method) and net realizable value. 

 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.  

 
An allowance is made for all deteriorated, damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. 

 
4.6 Investments 

 
Investments in subsidiaries 

 
Investments in subsidiaries, in the separate financial statements of the Company, are accounted for 
using the equity method, except for the investment in Thai Pattana Fund II, in which the Company 
holds 0.01%, directly, which is valued using the cost method. 

 
Investments in subsidiary companies have been recorded by using the equity method for the 
purpose of reflecting the status of and returns on investments in those companies. The share of 
income (loss) of subsidiary companies for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 has not 
been considered in the income tax computation for each year. 

 
Investment in equity securities 

 
Marketable equity securities other than those securities held for trading are classified as being 
available-for-sale and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised 
directly in equity. The exceptions are impairment losses which are recognised in the statement of 
income. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised directly in equity is recognised in the statement of income. 

 
4.7 Property, plant and equipment 

 
Owned assets 

 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses. The revalued amount is the fair value determined on the basis of the 
property’s existing use at the date of revaluation less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses.  
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Leased assets 
 

Leases in terms of which the Group substantially assumes all the risk and rewards of ownership are 
classified as finance leases.  Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of finance leases is 
capitalized at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the 
inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Lease payments are 
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are charged 
directly to the statement of income. 
 
Revalued assets 

 
Revaluations are performed by independent professional valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure 
that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from that which would be 
determined using fair values at the balance sheet date. 

 
Any increase in value, on revaluation, is credited to the revaluation reserve unless it offsets a 
previous decrease in value recognized in the statement of income. A decrease in value is 
recognized in the statement of income to the extent it exceeds an increase previously recognized in 
the revaluation reserve. The revaluation surplus is utilized by reference to the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the 
asset’s original cost and credited to the statement of income. Upon disposal, any remaining related 
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to the statement of income and is 
taken into account in calculating the gain or loss on disposal. 
 
Major property, plant and equipment of the Company and certain subsidiaries are recorded at 
revalued amounts, as revalued by an independent professional valuers. Property, plant and 
equipment acquired subsequent to the appraisal dates and the property and equipment of the other 
subsidiaries are recorded at cost.  The Company and subsidiaries have a policy to revalue property 
and equipment whenever the fair value of the revalued assets changes significantly. 

 
Assets foreclosed 

 
Assets foreclosed comprised the floating hotel, improvement, furnitures and fixtures, equipment, 
machinery and equipment and hotel operating equipment are presented at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.  

 
4.8 Depreciation 
 

Depreciation is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.  The estimated useful lives are as 
follows: 
 
Building and improvements 5 - 40 years 
Floating hotel 20 years 
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 - 12.5 years 
Machinery and equipment 5 - 10 years 
Vehicles 5 - 10 years 
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Property and equipment stated at revalued amounts are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over their remaining useful lives. Leasehold and leasehold improvements are depreciated over the 
lease terms. Operating equipment is written off to expense using the inventory method. 
 
No depreciation is provided on freehold land or assets under construction. 
 

4.9 Intangible assets 
 

Leasehold rights 
 

Prepaid leasehold rent is recorded at revalued amounts. The revalued amounts is determined by 
independent professional valuers.  The Company has a policy to appraise leasehold rights whenever 
the fair value of the revalued leasehold rights changes significantly. 
 
Deferred expenses 
 
Deferred expenses comprise the initial franchise fees for outlets, which are paid to franchisers. 

 
Goodwill 
 
Goodwill in a business combination represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair 
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired.  Negative goodwill in a business 
combination represents the excess of the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net 
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition. 
 
Goodwill and negative goodwill are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses.  Goodwill and negative goodwill arising on acquisition of shares in subsidiaries are included 
in investments. 

 
The gain or loss on disposal of an entity includes the unamortised balance of goodwill relating to 
the entity disposed of. 

 
Commission directly related to annual membership fees is recorded as deferred expense. 

 
Amortization 
 
Leasehold rights are amortized on a straight-line method over the remaining terms of the leases. 
 
The initial franchise fees for outlets, which are paid to franchisers, are amortized using the straight-
line method over ten (10) years, the period of the franchise agreements. 
 
Amortization is charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of intangible assets. Goodwill and negative goodwill are amortized over 10 years. 
 
Commission directly related to annual membership fees is amortized using the straight-line method 
over the term of membership. 
 



Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries  
Notes to the financial statements  
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 
 
 

 18

4.10 Impairment 
 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income 
unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity. 
 
When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised directly 
in equity and there is objective evidence that the value of the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss 
that had been recognized directly in equity is recognised in the statement of income even though the 
financial asset has not been derecognised.  The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in 
the statement of income is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less 
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the statement of income. 
 
Calculation of recoverable amount 

 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those 
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 

 
Reversals of impairment 

 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount.  
 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized. 

 
4.11 Trade and other payables 
 

Trade and other payables (including balances with related parties) are stated at cost. 
 
4.12 Provisions 
 

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at 
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
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4.13 Revenue 
 

Revenue excludes value added taxes or other sales taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade 
discounts. 
 
Sale of goods and services rendered 

 
Revenue is recognised in the statement of income when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred to the buyer.  No revenue is recognised if there is continuing 
management involvement with the goods or there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of 
the consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of goods. 

 
Hotel revenues from room, food and beverage and other services are recognized when the rooms 
are occupied, food and beverages are sold and the services are rendered. 

 
Revenues from fast food restaurants are recognized when food and beverages are sold to the 
customer. 

 
Rental income 

 
Rental income from investment property is recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. 

 
Interest and dividend income 
 
Interest income is recognized in the statement of income as it accrues.  Dividend income is 
recognized in the statement of income on the date the group’s right to receive payments is 
established. 
 

4.14 Deferred income 
 

The Company and a subsidiary recognize annual membership fees as income using the straight-line 
method over the term of membership. 
 
Certain subsidiaries recognize deferred rental and service income and subsidy as income using the 
straight-line method over the terms of the agreements. 
 

4.15 Expenses 
 
Operating leases 

 
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the statement of income on a straight line 
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized in the statement of 
income as an integral part of the total lease payments made. 

 
Finance costs 
 
Interest expenses and similar costs are charged to the statement of income in the period in which 
they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to be prepared for its intended use or sale.  
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4.16 Income tax 
 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax.  Income tax is recognized in the 
statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity. 
 
Current tax 

 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years. 

 
Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor’s income tax for the years ended 2005 and 2004 was 
calculated in accordance with latest information issued by The United Nations Transitional 
Administration in East Timor (UNTAET). 

 
5 Related party transactions and balances 
 

Related parties are those parties linked to the Group and the Company by common shareholders or 
directors. Transactions with related parties are conducted at prices based on market prices or, where 
no market price exists, at contractually agreed prices. 

 
The pricing policies for particular types of transactions are explained further below: 

  Pricing policies   
Interest income and interest expense  Bank deposit interest rate  
Management fee income and expense  Contractually agreed prices 
Electricity expenses  Market price 
Rental income and expense  Market price 

 
Transactions for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 with related parties are summarised 
as follows: 

 
  Consolidated The Company 
 Relation 2005 2004 2005 2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Revenue  
Rental income 
(Part of the other income in the 
statement of  income) 

 

Other company :     
Had Yai Department Store Co., Ltd. Common       
 shareholders       
 and director 14,279  14,279 -  - 
Total  14,279  14,279 -  - 
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  Consolidated The Company 
 Relation 2005 2004 2005 2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Interest income 
(Part of the interest income in the 
statement of  income) 

  

Subsidiaries :   
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 4,428  1,857 
Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd.  -  - 75  999 
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd.  -  - 1,102  2,403 
Central World Hotel Co., Ltd.  -  - 258  1 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 1,583  - 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd.  -  -      99  1,529 
Total  -  - 7,545  6,789 
   
Management fees income 
(Part of the other income in the 
statement of  income) 

  

Subsidiaries :        
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 6,914  9,659 
Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 24,540  22,432 
Central Samui Village Co., Ltd.  -  - 4,936  4,378 
Central Sukhontha Hotel Co., Ltd.  -  - 5,104  6,165 
Central Mae Sot Hill Hotel Co., Ltd.  -  - 1,511  1,401 
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd.  -  - 2,587  3,229 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 3,600  3,600 
Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor  -  - 1,014  2,294 
Central World Hotel Co., Ltd.  -  - 3,000  2,250 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd.  -  - 3,000  3,000 
        
Other companies :        
Tiang Chirathivat Co., Ltd. Common       
 shareholders       
 and director 2,467  5,602    2,467    5,602 
Total  2,467  5,602 58,673  64,010 
        
Other income 
(Part of the other income in the  
statement of  income) 

       

Subsidiary        
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 2,768    3,164 
Total  -  - 2,768    3,164
        
Expenses        
Electricity expense 
(Part of the maintenance and energy  in 
the statement of  income) 

       

Other company :        
Central Pattana Public Co., Ltd. Common        
 shareholders       
 and director 43,710  41,484 43,710  41,484 
Total  43,710  41,484 43,710  41,484
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  Consolidated The Company 
 Relation 2005 2004 2005 2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Administrative expense 
(Part of the administrative expense  in the 
statement of  income) 

       

Other companies :        
Harng Central Department Store Co., Ltd. Common        
 shareholders       
 and director 10,000  10,000 -  - 
AAPC (Thailand) Limited Shareholders       
 of subsidiary 18,845  18,713 6,845  6,495 
Other companies    2,233    2,201 -  - 
Total  31,078  30,914 6,845  6,495
        
Interest expense 
(Part of the interest expense  in the 
statement of  income) 

       

Subsidiaries :  -  -    
Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 24,788  22,608 
Central Karon Village  Co., Ltd.  -  - 314  - 
Central Hotel Management  Co., Ltd.  -  - 930  - 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd.  -  - 677  3,005 
Central World Hotel Co., Ltd.  -  - 3,872  2,412 
Central Koh Kood Hotel Co., Ltd.  -  - 44  - 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd.  -  - 1,954       472 
Total  -  - 32,579  28,497 
        
Rental expense 
(Part of the administrative expense  in the 
statement of  income) 

       

Other companies :        
Central Pattana Public Co., Ltd. Common       
 shareholders      
 and director 10,807 10,491 10,807  10,491 
Central International Development Common       
   Co., Ltd. shareholders      
 and director 2,846   2,846 2,846    2,846 
Thai Business Fund 4 Holding by       
 Company that       
 has common       
 shareholders       
 and director 3,374  - -  - 
Total  17,027 13,337 13,653  13,337 
        
Prepaid lease payment      
(Part of the leasehold right in the balance 
sheet) 

     

Other company Holding by      
Thai Business Fund 4 Company that     
 has common     
 shareholders     
 and director 275,000 - - - 
Total  275,000 - - - 
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Balances as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 with related parties are as follows: 
 

Accounts receivable – related parties 
 

  Consolidated The Company 
 Relation 2005 2004 2005 2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Subsidiaries :   
Central Mae Sot Hill Hotel Co., Ltd.  - - 624 512 
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  - - 2,659 3,384 
Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  - - 5,885 5,299 
Central Sukhontha Hotel Co., Ltd.  - - 1,595 1,648 
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd.  - - 1,195 1,132 
Central Samui Village Co., Ltd.  - - 1,271 1,119 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd.  - - 2,442 6,859 
Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor  - - 1,470 467 
Central Maritime Hotel Co., Ltd.   - - 65 3 
Central World Hotel Co., Ltd.  - - 803 803 
Central Koh Kood  Hotel Co., Ltd.  - - 260 - 
Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd.  - - 9 2 
B - R (Thailand) Co., Ltd.  - - 30 15 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd.  - - 1,121 951 
        
Other companies :        
Central International Development Common       
   Co., Ltd. shareholders     
 and director 13,849 13,849 - - 
Tiang Chirathivat Co., Ltd. Common       
 shareholders       
 and director 3,183 6,445 2,731 6,024 
Had Yai Department Store Co., Ltd. Common       
 shareholders       
 and director 2,270 1,937 - - 
AAPC (Thailand) Limited Shareholders       
 of subsidiary 19 - - - 
Others  1,245 113 - - 
Total  20,566 22,344 22,160 28,218 

 
Loans to related parties 

 
Short-term      
(interest rate/annum)        
Subsidiaries        
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. (3.5-4.0)  - - 159,000 100,000 
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd. (3.0)  - - - 82,500 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. (3.75)  - - 218,000 - 
Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (3.0)  - - - 29,500 
Total  - - 377,000 212,000 
Accounts receivable and short-term loan  20,566 22,344 399,160 240,218 
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Movements during the years on loans to related parties are as follows: 
 
  Consolidated The Company 
  2005 2004 2005 2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Short-term      
At 1 January  - - 212,000 284,000 
Increase  - - 1,048,800 195,500 
Decrease  - - (883,800) (267,500) 
At 31 December  - - 377,000 212,000 
 
Accounts payable – related parties 

 
  Consolidated The Company 
 Relation 2005 2004 2005 2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Subsidiaries :   
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  - - - 53 
Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd.  - - 39 142 
Central Samui Village Co., Ltd.  - - 21 12 
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd.  - - 4 2 
Central Sukhontha Hotel Co., Ltd.  - - 4 - 
Central Mae Sot Hill Hotel Co., Ltd.  - - 6 - 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd.  - - - 3 
Other companies      
Central International Development Common     
   Co., Ltd. shareholders     
 and director 13,253 13,253 - - 
Tiang Chirathivat Co., Ltd. Common     
 shareholders     
 and director 66 120 18 - 
AAPC (Thailand) Limited Shareholders       
 of subsidiary 948 3,771 - - 
Others  (133) 325 - - 
Total  14,134 17,469 92 212 

 
Loans from related parties 

 
Short-term      
(interest rate/annum)        
Subsidiaries        
Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd. (3.0-3.75)  - - 774,000 752,000
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd. (3.5-3.75)  - - 17,000 - 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. (1.5)  - - - 108,000
Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. (1.5-3.75)  - - 348,000 197,000
Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (3.5-3.75)  - - 83,000 - 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd (3.0)  -  - 20,000
Total  - - 1,222,000 1,077,000
Accounts payable and short-term loans  14,134 17,469 1,222,092 1,077,212
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Movements during the years on loans from related parties are as follows: 
 
  Consolidated The Company 
  2005 2004 2005 2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Short-term     
At 1 January  - - 1,077,000  1,053,000
Increase  - - 1,482,200  586,250
Decrease  - - (1,337,200)  (562,250)
At 31 December  - - 1,222,000  1,077,000
 
On 17 June 2005, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase shares in Central Restaurants 
Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) with 2 former shareholders, Suannaklau Co., Ltd. and Central Leasing Co., 
Ltd., which are related parties by common directors. The Company acquired 147,524 shares from 
Suannaklau Co., Ltd., at Baht 277.20 per share, amounting to Baht 40.90 million and the Company 
acquired 844,525 shares from Central Leasing Co., Ltd., at Baht 277.20 per share, amounting to Baht 
234.10 million. The payment for the said acquired shares was made on the agreement date. The total 
shares acquired were 992,049 shares at the total amount of Baht 275 million. 
 
On 16 November 2005, a subsidiary, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) and another 
subsidiary, Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (“CHM”), CRG entered into an agreement to 
purchase 14,999,994 shares in B-R (Thailand) Co., Ltd., at net book value from CHM, amounting 
to Baht 65 million. 

 

Obligation under agreements with related parties 
 
Long-term reciprocation agreement 
 
The Company 
 
Under the terms of a reciprocal agreement entered into with Central International Development Co., 
Ltd. who entered into long-term land lease agreement with State Railway of Thailand, the Company 
has been granted the right to construct a hotel building on the leased property of Central 
International Development Co., Ltd. and to operate the hotel for the Company's benefits up to 18 
December 2008. This agreement is renewable for period of 10 years each.The Company is 
committed to make payments for this right totaling approximately Baht 73.7 million payable in 
various installments up to 2008.  
 
On 26 March 2003, Central International Development Co., Ltd. entered into a memorandum of 
understanding with the State Railway of Thailand in which the said related company agreed to pay 
certain compensation on lease agreement as mutually agreed with the State Railway of Thailand. 
The Company agreed to share the said compensation for the total amount of approximately Baht 65 
million to be paid in 8 installments; the first installment was paid on 31 March 2003 and the last 
installment will be paid by 18 December 2008. The Company recorded this compensation as a 
deferred charge with a provision of the same amount. As at 31 December 2005, provision due 
within one year of Baht 8.04 million is included in other current liabilities, and the portion due after 
one year of Baht 16.08 million is included in provision for liabilities. The Company’s policy is to 
amortize deferred charges by the straight-line method over the remaining period of the lease 
agreement until the year 2008. As at 31 December 2005, deferred expense and prepaid expense of 
the said compensation amount to Baht 24.12 million and Baht 8.46 million, respectively. 
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Long - term lease agreements 
 
The Company 
 
In 1992, the Company renewed the lease agreement with Central Pattana Public Co., Ltd. for the 
leasing of Bangkok Convention Center for a period of 17 years. The lease will expire on 18 
December 2008. Under the terms of this agreement, the Company was required to pay the lessor 
Baht 115 million for this leasehold right.  This amount is presented as leasehold rights in the 
balance sheets.  In addition, the Company was required to pay annual rent of Baht 1 million.  The 
annual rental charge increases by 5% yearly.  The Company can renew the agreement by giving 
written notice to the lessor prior to the expiry date of the agreement.  
 
On 1 May 1989, the Company entered into a lease agreement for a parking lot and tennis court with 
Central Pattana Public Co., Ltd. This agreement was originally for a period of 3 years commencing 
from 1 January 1989.  This agreement is renewable for periods of 3 years each.  The lessor is 
entitled to increase the annual rental by 5% of the preceding year’s rental. The annual rental 
expense for this agreement is currently approximately Baht 3 million. 
 
Subsidiaries 
 

- Central Ice Cream Co., Ltd. (“CIC”) entered into a sublease agreement with B-R (Thailand) Co., 
Ltd. (“BRT”) and Thai Franchising Co., Ltd. (“TF”) and received rental fees from BRT of Baht 
60,000 per year for 8 years starting in 1 March 1997.  Moreover, TF pays rental and service fees of 
Baht 600,000 per year without a specified expiry date.  
 
As at 30 September 2005, the said agreements expired and no renewal was made. 
 

- On 1 April 2001, Central Maritime Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CMT”) entered into an agreement to rent a 
floating hotel to Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor (“CMHD”). This agreement is for a 
period of 5 years starting on 1 January 2001. CMT received a rental fee in the amount of USD 
100,000 per month.  This will be reviewed every six months. The agreement, dated 1 April 2002, 
was amended to change the rent rate of floating hotel to USD 150,000 per month, effective from 1 
July 2001. 
 
On 1 June 2002, CMT agreed to revise the monthly rental under the floating hotel lease agreement 
to USD 100,000 per month, effective from 1 January 2002, which resulted in a decrease of the ship 
rental in the amount of Baht 12.6 million (US$ 300,000).  
 
From January 2003 to June 2003, CMT has waived the ship rental from CMHD, because CMHD 
encountered difficulties with its operation and could not bear the ship rental.  However, since June 
2003, the operation of CMHD has improved and it was agreed by both CMT and CMHD to charge 
for the floating hotel rental starting from July 2003 to 30 June 2005 (date of operation suspension), 
based on 2% of monthly revenue after service tax. 
 

- On 12 December 2002, Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd., (“CSBR”) entered into a purchase 
and sales agreement with Thai Pattana Fund I (“Fund”) in which CSBR agreed to sell a hotel 
building and furniture for hotel operations to the fund for Baht 437 million.  CSBR also entered into 
a leaseback agreement with the fund on the same date for a three year period from the agreement 
date.  The leaseback agreement can be renewed for three-year periods.  The rental for each renewal 
period will be based on the prior rental unless an adjustment in rental is agreed. The adjustment for 
increase or decrease of rental should not exceed 15% of the average rental for the prior year.  CSBR 
committed to make semi annual rental payments of Baht 150 million. Under the said agreement, 
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CSBR agreed to comply with various conditions as described in the said agreement, such as 
purchasing insurance for the leased assets and other conditions. 
 
However, CSBR and the fund agreed to decrease the semi-annual rental from Baht 150 million to 
Baht 127.5 million, commencing from the payment due on 30 September 2004 onward. 
 
On 2 December 2005, CSBR and the fund agreed to extend the said leaseback agreement for 3 
years, starting from 12 December 2005 to 11 December 2008. 
 
In addition, on 12 December 2002, CSBR entered into a land lease agreement with the fund for a 15 
years period from 12 December 2002 to 11 December 2017.  On the agreement date, the fund 
agreed to pay land rental of Baht 910 million for the total lease period to CSBR.  Under this 
agreement, the fund as the owner of the hotel buildings which are located on the leased land, agreed 
to sell the said hotel buildings including furniture back to CSBR on the transfer of the building 
ownership date. The transfer of building ownership will be made when CSBR has made full 
repayment for repurchase of the hotel buildings and furniture to the fund as stated in the agreement. 
  
The fund hired CSBR as property manager according to property management agreement dated 12 
December 2002 for a 15-year period from the agreement date.  The fund agreed to pay a property 
management fee to CSBR of Baht 1.5 million every six months.  Under the said agreement, CSBR 
agreed to follow the conditions as stated in this agreement such as to maintain a liabilities to equity 
ratio of not exceeding 2:1 according to the detail of calculation as stated in the agreement and to 
maintain the ratio of the outstanding investment units for type A investors to the market value of 
hotel not exceeding 0.65 : 1 and others. 
 
As guarantee for the repayment and compliance with this agreement, CSBR has mortgaged land, 
which is the location of the said leased assets, and Central Plaza Hotel Public Co., Ltd. has prepared 
a guarantee letter for the repayment and compliance with the building lease agreement and property 
management agreement. 
 

- On 23 December 2003, Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. (“CHBR”) entered into a land and 
hotel buildings lease agreement of Central Wong Amat Beach Resort Pattaya (“Hotel Buildings”) 
with Thai Pattana Fund 2 (“The Fund”) to operate the hotel business for a period of 10 years, 
starting from 23 December 2003 onwards.  Thus, CHBR agreed to pay the rent, on a semi-annual 
basis, by instalments of Baht 55 million each.  The lease rate will be in force for the lease period 
starting from the date of signing the agreement until 28 February 2007, after which the contracting 
parties will adjust the rental as appropriate. The first payment of rent was due on 26 August 2004 to 
cover the lease period from 23 December 2003 until 31 August 2004 and the next payment is due 
on the third working day before the end of February and August of each year.  The last payment of 
rent will be made upon termination or ending of the agreement, in the amount calculated based on 
the actual number of days counting from the date following the preceding payment of rent until the 
end of the agreement.  Under the said agreement, CHBR agreed to comply with the various 
conditions as described in the agreement. 
 
In addition, CHBR agreed to build a building or other construction on the leased land in order to 
add value to the land and hotel buildings as compensation to the Fund for agreeing with CHBR to 
lease the assets and, one year after the beginning of the lease period, CHBR agreed to renovate 
and/or consider to renovate the hotel building to improve the value of leased assets and the 
suitableness of its hotel business. Furthermore, CHBR agreed to purchase insurance for the leased 
assets for sum insured of Baht 450 million, with the Fund as the beneficiary. 
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- On 23 December 2003, Central International Development Co., Ltd (“the Consignor”) entered into 
a consignment agreement of land and building with Thai Pattana Fund 2 (“the Consignee”) and 
other party as another consignor had entered into a consignment agreement of land with Thai 
Pattana Fund 2 (“the Consignee”) for Central Hua Hin Beach Resort (“CHBR”) to lease and operate 
the hotel business, the contracting parties of which agreed with the consignors or Central Hua Hin 
Beach Resort  Co., Ltd. or Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited, either of which will have 
the right to redeem the assets on consignment from the consignee at the redeemable price stipulated 
in the agreement within ten years counting from the registration date of the ownership transfer or in 
the case of the one who has the right to redeem wishing to finalize the redemption of  the assets on 
consignment prior to ten years’ period will have to notify the consignee in writing, in advance not 
less than 30 days before the next installment is due. 
 
On 18 December 2003, both consignors issued the renounce letter for the right to redeem the assets 
on consignment to CHBR and Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited. 
 
As guarantee for the repayment and compliance with this agreement, Central Plaza Hotel Public 
Co., Ltd. has prepared a guarantee letter for the repayment of CHBR to Thai Pattana Fund 2. 

 
Long - term service agreements 
 
The Company 
 

- On 1 December 1997, the Company entered into a management agreement with Tiang Chirathivat     
Co., Ltd. to manage a condominium building, starting from 1 December 1997 to 30 November 
2007, with a renewable option for an additional period of 5 years, with 6 months notice required 
prior to the termination of the agreement.  Within the 10 - year period of the agreement, the 
Company will invest in fixtures and fittings and record the transaction as “Waterfront long-term 
investment”, the expense of which will be amortized over 10 years.  The Company will receive a 
management fee from the related company based on the percentage of net profit from operation, as 
stipulated in the agreement, and the said assets will be transferred to the contracting party when the 
management agreement expires. 
 

- On 1 July 2004, the Company entered into management agreements with its subsidiaries, effective 
from 1 January 2004. Management fee would be paid on a quarterly basis. The parties to the 
agreement have the right to amend the agreement, as detailed below: 
 
- The Company entered into management agreements with its seven subsidiaries in the hotel 
group to manage the hotel operations. Under the said agreements, the Company would receive 
management fee based on the percentage of net sales specified in the agreements, divided into 
operational management fee and marketing management fee.  
 
- The Company entered into a marketing management agreement with another subsidiary in the 
hotel group. Under this agreement, the Company would receive the marketing management fee at 
the percentage of net sales specified in the agreement.  
 

- The Company entered into a management agreement with another subsidiary in the hotel group 
to manage the hotel’s operation. Under the said agreement, the Company would receive a monthly 
fixed management fee as specified in the agreement. 
 
- The Company entered into a management agreement with one subsidiary, Central Restaurants 
Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”), for the operational management of CRG. Under the said agreement, the 
Company would receive a monthly fixed management fee as specified in the agreement. 
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Subsidiaries 
 

- Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. (“CHBR”) has entered into a management agreement with 
AAPC (Thailand) Limited.  Under the terms of the management agreement, which covers a period 
of 10 years starting from 1 April 1996, the latter will provide the Hotel's management and 
operations for CHBR. CHBR agrees to pay a management fee, which is calculated based on the 
method stated in the agreement. 
 
The management agreement shall be automatically renewed for successive five years term, and as 
at 22 December 2000, CHBR had amended the terms of the management agreement by another two 
years' extension commencing from 1 January 2001 and ending in 31 December 2002. 
 
On 10 October 2002 CHBR amended the term of the agreement for two years extension 
commencing from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2004. In addition, the agreement also stated that 
the agreement could be automatically extended for another 1 year, commencing from 1 January 
2005 to 31 December 2005. 
 
On 28 November 2005, CHBR amended the term of the agreement for 30 months extension 
commencing from 1 January 2006 to 30 June 2008. In addition, the agreement also stated that the 
agreement could be automatically extended for another 1 year, commencing from 1 July 2008 to 30 
June 2009. 
 

- On 1 January 2001, Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. (“CHBR”) entered into a service 
agreement with Harng Central Department Store Co., Ltd. for a period of 3 years, in order to 
receive information and various suggestions, which will be beneficial to CHBR. Annual service fee 
is Baht 10 million. Either party can extend the agreement for another 1 year, when the agreement 
expires.  The service fee will be reviewed by both parties. 
 

- Central Sukhontha Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CSH”) has entered into a rental and services agreement with 
Had Yai Department Store Co., Ltd. for a period of 30 years ending on 31 May 2024. Had Yai 
Department Store Co., Ltd. agrees to lease part of the building as a shopping center.  Total income 
to CSH under the agreement will amount to approximately Baht 428 million in total. 

 
- B-R (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“BRT”) entered into a memorandum of practice for buying-selling of 

Baskin-Robbins ice-cream between BRT and Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”), 
relating to taking care of inventory after the production process finished (Baskin-Robbins ice-
cream) which BRT produces and transfers to CRG, while BRT shall keep and take care of the said 
product until the product is delivered to the branch or premise of CRG’s customers. 
 
Franchise agreements 
 
The Company 
 
The Company entered into a franchise contract with AAPC (Thailand) Limited., on 28 February 
2001, effective 1 March 2001, permitting the Company to operate a hotel business under the name 
“Sofitel” for a period of 5 years; and in return for this right, the Company agreed to pay a fee based 
on the total accommodation income, at the rate specified in the contract. 
 



Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries  
Notes to the financial statements  
For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 
 
 

 30

Subsidiaries 
 
On 20 September 2001, Central Sukhontha Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CSH”) entered into a franchise 
agreement with AAPC (Thailand) Co., Ltd, whereby CSH was allowed to use the name of 
“Novotel” for a period of 5 years, commencing from 1 October 2001 to 30 September 2006.  In 
consideration thereof, CSH agreed to pay a fee at the percentage of room revenue as stated in the 
agreement. 
 
Sublicense agreement 
 
On 3 November 2003, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”), being granted a sublicense 
from Central Ice Cream Co., Ltd., had entered into a sublicense agreement with B-R (Thailand) 
Co., Ltd., which allowed CRG to operate under the trademark of “Baskin - Robbins” on its products 
in the Kingdom of Thailand.  
 
Long - term lease and service agreements 
 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) had long-term lease and service agreements with 
related company for periods of 3 to 30 years up to 2026. According to the terms of the agreements, 
CRG has to pay monthly rental and service charges at fixed rates or at certain percentages of gross 
sales 
 
As at 31 December 2005, CRG are committed to pay monthly rental and service charges at fixed 
rates, as follow : 

 

 (in million Baht)
Less than 1 year 210 
Over 1 year but less than 3 years 197 
Over 3 years   36 
Total 443 
 
Contract for the production of Ice-cream  
 
As at 3 November 2003, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) has been granted the right 
under the Co-Packing Agreement from Central Fast Food Group Co., Ltd., which was made with  
B-R (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“BRT”)The agreement term is 3 years starting from 19 June 2001 to 18 
June 2004, under which BRT will be the producer and supplier of ice cream to CRG for distributing 
to KFC’s outlets, under the agreed terms, by the use of certain production formulas. Quality testing 
will be conducted by the ordering company 
 
As at 1 January 2005, CRG has renewed the said agreement for a one-year period, commencing 
from the agreement date and expiring on 31 December 2005. 
 
As at 31 December 2005, the said agreement is under the renewal process. 
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Commitments under agreements with related parties 
 
As at 31 December 2005 
 
The Company 
 

- The Company guaranteed the overdraft lines, letters of credit and various guarantees for 
subsidiaries to various local banks totaling Baht 79 million. 
 

- On 12 December 2002, the Company issued a letter to guarantee the debt repayment of Central 
Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd. to Thai Pattana Fund I.  In the event that Central Samui Beach Resort 
Co., Ltd. cannot manage the property so as to have the minimum income as stated in the property 
management agreement, the Company will be responsible for the shortfall in minimum income. 
 

- On 23 December 2003, the Company issued a letter to guarantee the debt repayment of Central Hua 
Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. to Thai Pattana Fund II. 

 
- The Company has guaranteed Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CWH”) to a financial institution in 

the amount not less than Baht 2,350 million. If CWH has an outstanding loan balance not over Baht 
1,000 million and has never been in default, CWH has the right to cancel the guarantee. As at 31 
December 2005, CWH has not made the first withdrawal as stated in the agreement. 
 

6 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
 Consolidated  The Company
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in million Baht) 
Cash at bank and on hand 58.57 46.53  4.71  3.89 
Call deposits 15.76 9.73 -  - 
Total 74.33 56.26 4.71  3.89 

 
7 Trade accounts receivable, net 

 
 Consolidated  The Company 
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
Within credit terms 167,945 134,578 48,078 39,643 
Overdue:     

Less than 3 months 60,914 99,302 6,241 20,952 
3-6 months 5,498 1,967 1,119 439 
6-12 months 1,551 939 386 176 
Over 12 months 1,200 1,656 722 957 

 237,108 238,442 56,546 62,167 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (1,089) (1,961) (662) (1,119) 
Net 236,019 236,481 55,884 61,048 

 
The normal credit term granted by the Group is 15 -30 days. 
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8 Inventories, net 
 
 Consolidated  The Company 
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
Food 109,378 92,584 4,002 4,103
Beverages 25,141 21,124 3,837 3,733
Spare parts and supplies 59,428 50,600 3,410 3,748
Souvenir merchandise and other 12,283 15,866 220 183
Total 206,230 180,174 11,469 11,767
Less allowance for obsolete stock (2,893) (585) - - 
Inventories - Net 203,337 179,589 11,469 11,767

 
9 Other current assets 

 
 Note Consolidated  The Company 
  2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in million Baht) 
Advance payment  9.58 20.62 1.00 0.84
Prepaid expenses  40.84 24.25 18.84 17.36
Withholding income tax  4.65 5.26 3.87 4.47
Receivable - reciprocation       
  agreement under construction of hotel 31 7.23 -  -  - 
Others  73.93 38.54 9.51 7.61
Total  136.23 88.67 33.22 30.28

 
10 Investments accounted for using the equity method 

 
 Consolidated  The Company
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
Net book value at 1 January - - 3,465,108 2,798,207 
Share of net profits of      
   Investments in subsidiaries - equity method - -    455,070 413,969 
Acquisitions in additional subsidiaries’ capital - - 1,234,247 250,750 
Dividend income - - (370,054) (155,749) 
Unit redemption from investment in fund - - (17,998) (17,998) 
Revaluation surplus in subsidiaries - - - 250,992 
Amortisation of revaluation surplus in       
    subsidiaries - -  (58,879) (76,440) 
Cumulative translation adjustment - - (4,167) 1,377 
Net book value at 31 December - - 4,703,327 3,465,108 
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Investments accounted for using the equity method as at 31 December 2005 and 2004, and dividend income from the investments for the years ended on those 
dates, are as follows: 

 

 
Central Koh Kood Hotel Co., Ltd., was incorporated on 4 November 2005. 

 

 The Company 
 Ownership interest Paid-up capital Cost method Equity method Dividend 

 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005  2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 
 (%)        (in thousand Baht) 
Subsidiaries         
Central Samui Beach Resort Co., Ltd. 100.0 100.0 250,000 250,000 394,383 394,383 761,911 697,300 - - 
Central Hotel Management Co., Ltd. 100.0 100.0 1,000,000 1,000,000 999,999 999,999 578,289 672,065 - - 
Central Karon Village Co., Ltd. 100.0 100.0 150,000 60,000 189,000 99,000 195,809 106,676 - - 
Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. 63.9 63.9 185,000 185,000 198,905 198,905 403,594 391,442 47,324 11,831 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. 100.0 100.0 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000     465,681   503,491 - - 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. 100.0 84.0 620,000 620,000 669,607 394,610 937,294 575,678 197,028 - 
Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. 100.0 100.0 1,000,000 250,750 1,000,000 250,750 989,609 249,833 - - 
Central Koh Kood Hotel Co., Ltd. 100.0 - 120,000 - 120,000 - 119,794 - - - 
Property fund           
Thai Pattana Fund I 20.04 20.04 1,350,000 1,350,000 219,531 237,529 251,346 268,623 125,702 143,918 
Total   5,175,000 4,215,750 4,291,425 3,075,176 4,703,327 3,465,108 370,054 155,749 
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Increase in share capital of the Subsidiaries 
 
At the extraordinary shareholders’ meetings No. 3/2005 and No. 4/2005 of Central Karon Village 
Co., Ltd. held on 3 June 2005 and 22  June 2005, respectively, a resolution was unanimously passed 
to increase the share capital from Baht 60 million to Baht 150 million by issuing 900,000 common 
shares, Baht 100 par value. The subsidiary registered the increased share capital with the Ministry 
of Commerce on 14 July 2005. 
 
At the extraordinary shareholders’ meetings No. 3/2005 and No. 4/2005 of Central Samui Village 
Co., Ltd. held on 7 June 2005 and 23 June 2005, respectively, a resolution was unanimously passed 
to increase the share capital from Baht 120 million to Baht 220 million by issuing 1,000,000 
common shares, Baht 100 par value.  The subsidiary registered the increased share capital with the 
Ministry of Commerce on 14 July 2005. 
 
At the extraordinary shareholders’ meetings No. 5/2005 and No. 6/2005 of Central Mae Sot Hill 
Hotel Co., Ltd. held on 9 June 2005 and 25 June 2005, respectively, a resolution was unanimously 
passed to increase the share capital from Baht 170 million to Baht 190 million by issuing 20,000 
common shares, Baht 1,000 par value.  The subsidiary registered the increased share capital with 
the Ministry of Commerce on 14 July 2005. 
 
At the extraordinary shareholders’ meetings No. 5/2005 and No. 6/2005 of Central Sukhontha Hotel 
Co., Ltd. held on 9 June 2005 and 25 June 2005, respectively, a resolution was unanimously passed 
to increase the share capital from Baht 380 million to Baht 580 million by issuing 2,000,000 
common shares, Baht 100 par value.  The subsidiary registered the increased share capital with the 
Ministry of Commerce on 4 July 2005. 

 
At the board of directors’ meeting no. 1/2005 of Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CWH”), held on 
17 May 2005, a resolution was unanimously passed to call-up the share capital for Baht 25 per 
share, amounting to Baht 249.75 million. The total paid-up capital would be Baht 50 per share, as 
formerly, the called-up and paid capital was Baht 25 per share. CWH was paid for the value of 
share called-up on 1 June 2005. 

 
At the board of directors’ meeting no. 2/2005 of Central World Hotel Co., Ltd., held on 1 August 
2005, a resolution was unanimously passed to call-up the share capital for Baht 25 per share, 
amounting to Baht 249.75 million. The total paid-up capital would be Baht 75 per share, as 
formerly, the called-up and paid capital was Baht 50 per share. CWH was paid for the value of 
share called-up on 8 August 2005. 
 
At the board of directors’ meeting no. 4/2005 of Central World Hotel Co., Ltd., held on 13 
December 2005, a resolution was unanimously passed to call-up the share capital for Baht 25 per 
share, amounting to Baht 249.75 million. The total capital was fully paid, as formerly, the called-up 
and paid capital was Baht 75 per share. CWH was paid for the value of share called-up on 19 
December 2005. 
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Dividends distribution and appropriation of legal reserves of the Subsidiaries 
 

At the ordinary shareholders’ meeting of Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. held on 29 April 
2005, the shareholders unanimously approved the distribution of cash dividends for the year ended 
31 December 2004 at Baht 8.07 per share (totaling Baht 50.03 million) and appropriation of legal 
reserve at 5% of net profit for the year 2004, totaling Baht 10.53 million. 
 
At the board of directors’ meeting of Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. held on 5 September 
2005, a resolution was unanimously passed for distribution of interim cash dividends at Baht 25 per 
share (totaling Baht 155 million). And appropriation of legal reserve at 5% of net profit for 6-month 
period ended 30 June 2005, totaling Baht 7.99 million. 
 
At the ordinary shareholders’ meeting of Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. held on 25 April 
2005, the shareholders unanimously approved the distribution of cash dividends for the year ended 
31 December 2004 at Baht 40 per share (totaling Baht 74 million). 
 
During the year 2005, Thai Pattana Fund 1 distributed cash dividends and unit redemption to unit 
holders for Baht 125.70 million and Baht 18.00 million, respectively. 

 
11 Other long-term investments 

 
 Consolidated 
 Cost  Market value 
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
Non-current     
Equity securities available for sale     
Shangrila Hotel Public Company Limited 14 14 27 27 
Asia Hotel Public Company Limited 11 11 4 4 
Royal Orchid Hotel (Thailand) Public     
   Company Limited 9 9 32 28 
Minor International Public Company     
   Limited 12 12 106 43 
Others 38 38 25 24 
Total 84 84 194 126 
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12 Property, plant and equipment - net 
 

 
 Consolidated 
 B/F Addition Disposal Transfer in Transfer 

out 
Transfer to 

assets 
foreclosed 

C/F 

 (in thousand Baht) 
Historical cost       
Cost        
Land  1,458,956 123,582 - - - - 1,582,538 
Land improvement 38,414 1,230 - - - - 39,644 
Building and         
   improvement 3,128,831 174,303 (55,191) 38,955 - (16,341) 3,270,557 
Furniture, fixtures and         
   office equipment 1,033,507 153,395 (34,263) 9,399 (1,335) (3,371) 1,157,332 
Machinery and        
   equipment 1,705,659 146,809 (18,117) 14,340 (200) (21,168) 1,827,323 
Hotel operating        
   equipment 82,020 35,338 (11,336) 992 (507) (2,040) 104,467 
Leasehold improvement 62,614 86 (1,120) 92 - - 61,672 
Vehicles 103,882 17,522 (8,106) 320 - - 113,618 
Construction in progress     286,466 1,253,406         (292) (27,699) (34,357)   -  1,477,524 
Total 7,900,349 1,905,671 (128,425) 36,399 (36,399) (42,920) 9,634,675 
        
Accumulated depreciation        
Land  - - - - - - - 
Land improvement 26,691 2,968 - - - - 29,659 
Building and        
   improvement 1,466,758 214,881 (27,288) 48 - (7,434) 1,646,965 
Furniture, fixture and         
   office equipment 851,397 68,918 (33,550) 430 (320) (3,089) 883,786 
Machinery and        
   equipment 1,361,600 119,871 (12,111) - (158) (20,111) 1,449,091 
Leasehold improvement 39,655 6,332 (703) - - - 45,284 
Vehicle 65,860 13,394 (6,553) - - - 72,701 
Construction in progress   -    -    -    -    -    -    -  
 3,811,961 426,364 (80,205)     478   (478) (30,634) 4,127,486 
  

Allowance for impairment of assets       
Land  - - - - - - - 
Land improvement - - - - - - - 
Building and        
   improvement 6,321 7,910 - - - (8,067) 6,164 
Furniture, fixtures and         
   office equipment - 215 - - - - 215 
Machinery and        
   equipment 500 - (500) - - - - 
Hotel operating        
   equipment - - - - - - - 
Leasehold improvement - - - - - - - 
Vehicles - - - - - - - 
Construction in progress   -    -   -   -    -    -   - 
         6,821       8,125      (500)   -    -      (8,067)       6,379 
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 Consolidated 
 B/F Addition Disposal Transfer in Transfer 

out 
Transfer to 

assets 
foreclosed 

C/F 

 (in thousand Baht) 
        
Net book value        
Land  1,458,956      1,582,538 
Land improvement 11,723      9,985 
Building and        
   improvement 1,655,752      1,617,428 
Furniture, fixtures and         
   office equipment 182,110      273,331 
Machinery and        
   equipment 343,559      378,232 
Hotel operating        
   equipment 82,020      104,467 
Leasehold         
    improvement 22,959      16,388 
Vehicles 38,022      40,917 
Construction in progress     286,466      1,477,524 
 4,081,567      5,500,810 
        
At revalued amounts        
Cost        
Land  441,140 - (4,382) - - - 436,758 
Land improvement 6,159 - - - (842) - 5,317 
Building and        
   improvement 912,352 - 483 - (483) - 912,352 
Furniture, fixtures and         
   office equipment 225,410 - (1,663) 27 - - 223,774 
Machinery and        
   equipment (1,319) - (14,104) 1,325 - - (14,098) 
Hotel operating        
   equipment 3,043 - (243) - (27) - 2,773 
Leasehold improvement 5,151 - (193) - - - 4,958 
Vehicles 7,265 - (1,705) - - - 5,560 
Construction in progress  -    -    -    -    -    -    -  
Total 1,599,201   -  (21,807)    1,352 (1,352)   -  1,577,394 
        
Accumulated depreciation       
Land  - - - - - - - 
Land improvement (2,810) 5,440 - - (3,857) - (1,227) 
Building and        
   improvement 580,837 44,504 (907) - (759) - 623,675 
Furniture, fixtures and         
   office equipment 182,706 18,231 (7,226) - - - 193,711 
Machinery and        
   equipment (95,362) 41,150 (1,848) 4,616 - - (51,444) 
Leasehold improvement (16,891) 5,974 (44) - - - (10,961) 
Vehicles (3,095) 6,254 (454) - - - 2,705 
Construction in progress  -    -   -   -   -    -    - 
Total     645,385 121,553 (10,479) 4,616 (4,616)   -  756,459 
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 Consolidated 
 B/F Addition Disposal Transfer in Transfer 

out 
Transfer to 

assets 
foreclosed 

C/F 

 (in thousand Baht) 
        
Net book value        
Land  441,140      436,758 
Land improvement 8,969      6,544 
Building and        
   improvement 331,515      288,677 
Furniture, fixtures and         
   office equipment 42,704      30,063 
Machinery and        
   equipment 94,043      37,346 
Hotel operating        
   equipment 3,043      2,773 
Leasehold improvement 22,042      15,919 
Vehicles 10,360      2,855 
Construction in progress   -         - 
Total    953,816         820,935 
Total 5,035,383      6,321,745 

 
 
At 31 December 2005, three subsidiaries had mortgaged land, building and construction as 
collateral for overdraft and long term loans from financial institutions and property funds.   
 
The land lease agreement for the Hua Hin Railway Hotel stipulates that hotel buildings and 
premises including the additional fixtures paid by a subsidiary, Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., 
Ltd., and costing Baht 558.86 million belong to the State Railway of Thailand. (See Note 30.1) 
 
Depreciation and amortization for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 in the amount of 
Baht 425.76 million and Baht 418.35 million respectively, are included in the statements of income. 
 
At 31 December 2005 and 2004, buildings and equipment with a cost of Baht 2,212.72 million and 
Baht 1,835.95 million respectively, were fully depreciated, but still in use . 

 
The foreclosed assets for the part of improvements, furniture and fixtures, office equipment, 
machinery and equipment and hotel operating equipment have the net book value as at 31 
December 2005 in the amount of Baht 4.22 million which belong to a subsidiary, Central Maritime 
Hotel, Dili, East Timor. 
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 The Company 
 B/F Addition Disposal Transfer in Transfer out C/F 
 (in thousand Baht) 
       
Historical cost       
Cost       
Building and       
   improvement 541,290 1,474 (170) 1,554 - 544,148 
Furniture, fixtures and       
   office equipment 339,999 15,170 (3,174) 2,378 - 354,373 
Machinery and equipment 578,204 12,510 (13,219) 507 - 578,002 
Hotel operating       
   equipment 31,288 4,321 (2,864) - - 32,745 
Leasehold improvement 62,615 85 (1,120) 92 - 61,672 
Vehicles 55,661 3,320 (1,790) - - 57,191 
Construction in progress        2,578  30,996  -   -  (4,531)       29,043 
Total 1,611,635 67,876 (22,337) 4,531 (4,531) 1,657,174 
       
Accumulated depreciation       
Building and improvement 448,700 27,758 (147) - - 476,311 
Furniture, fixtures and        
   office equipment 305,547 13,475 (2,583) - - 316,439 
Machinery and equipment 519,399 16,579 (11,465) - - 524,513 
Leasehold improvement 39,655 6,332 (703) - - 45,284 
Vehicles 39,366 6,776 (1,790) - - 44,352 
Construction in progress   -   -    -   -    -   -  
Total 1,352,667 70,920 (16,688)  -    -  1,406,899 
       
Net book value       
Building and       
   improvement 92,590     67,837 
Furniture, fixtures and        
   office equipment 34,452     37,934 
Machinery and equipment 58,805     53,489 
Hotel operating       
   equipment 31,288     32,745 
Leasehold improvement 22,960     16,388 
Vehicles 16,295     12,839 
Construction in progress         2,578         29,043 
Total    258,968      250,275 
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 The Company 
 B/F Addition Disposal Transfer in Transfer out C/F 
 (in thousand Baht) 
At revalued amounts       
Cost       
Building and improvement 554,640 - (203) - - 554,437 
Furniture, fixtures and        
   office equipment 133,640 - (865) - - 132,775 
Machinery and equipment (47,122) - (1,991) - - (49,113) 
Hotel operating       
   equipment 1,338 - (82) - - 1,256 
Leasehold improvement 5,151 - (193) - - 4,958 
Vehicles 6,982 - (365) - - 6,617 
Construction in progress   -   -   -   -   -   -  
Total 654,629  -  (3,699)  -   -  650,930 
    
    
Accumulated depreciation       
Building and improvement 459,561 22,849 (170) - - 482,240 
Furniture, fixtures and        
   office equipment 129,768 1,319 (865) - - 130,222 
Machinery and equipment (90,547) 21,681 (1,752) - - (70,618) 
Leasehold improvement (16,892) 5,974 (44) - - (10,962) 
Vehicles 411 4,494 (365) - - 4,540 
Construction in progress   -    -   -   -   -    -  
Total 482,301 56,317 (3,196)  -   -  535,422 
       
       
Net book value       
Building and improvement 95,079     72,197 
Furniture, fixtures and        
   office equipment 3,872     2,553 
Machinery and equipment 43,425     21,505 
Hotel operating equipment 1,338     1,256 
Leasehold improvement 22,043     15,920 
Vehicles 6,571     2,077 
Construction in progress   -        -  
Total 172,328     115,508 
Total 431,296     365,783 

 

Depreciation and amortization for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 in the amount of 
Baht 70.92 million and Baht 73.55 million, respectively, are included in the statement of income. 
 
At 31 December 2005 and 2004, buildings and equipment with a cost of Baht 861.24 million and 
Baht 817.45 million respectively, were fully depreciated, but still in use. 
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13 Floating hotel 
 
 Consolidated  The Company
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
Floating Hotel of Central Maritime       
   Hotel Co., Ltd. - cost 159,422 159,422 - - 
Floating Hotel improvement 9,996 9,996 - - 
Less accumulated depreciation (68,671) (63,655) - - 
Allowance for impairment loss (63,500) (63,500) - - 
Transfer to foreclosed assets (37,247) - - - 
Net book value at 31 December - 42,263 - - 

 
Floating Hotel was assets for lease, which belong to a subsidiary, Central Maritime Hotel Co., Ltd. 
(“CMT”). The vessel was leased by Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor which is the foreign 
subsidiary used for business operation. 
 
On 2 December 2005, CMT entered into a memorandum of agreement for sale of the said Floating 
Hotel to a foreign company in the amount of US$ 3.9 million and the payment would be due on the 
date that the vessel is transferred to the purchaser. 
 
As at 31 December 2005, the said Floating Hotel which had net book value of Baht 37.25 million, 
was transferred to foreclosed assets together with improvements, furniture and fixtures and office 
equipment machinery and equipment and hotel operating equipments which belonged to Central 
Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor and have net book value of Baht 4.22 million. Total amount of 
assets foreclosed was Baht 41.47 million. 
 

14 Intangible assets 
 
Leasehold rights 
 
 Consolidated  The Company
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
Leasehold rights - revalued amounts 744,672 489,420 67,707 74,472 
Less accumulated amortization (258,756) (222,410) (16,933) (6,773) 
Less allowance for impairment - - - - 
Leasehold rights, net 485,916 267,010 50,774 67,699 
 
The amortization charges for the years ended 31 December 2005 for the consolidated financial 
statements and the Company ‘s financial statements were Baht 36.35 million and Baht 10.16 
million, respectively. 

 
The revaluation surplus of leasehold rights net of accumulated amortization is presented as 
“Revaluation surplus of property, buildings and equipment, net” under “Shareholders’ equity” in 
the balance sheets.  The revaluation surplus of assets is not available for dividend distribution. 
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Deferred initial fee 
 
 Consolidated 
 2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
At 1 January 61,294 66,265 
Addition during the years 19,325 7,931 
Less amortization expenses (11,279) (9,198) 
Less write-off (69) (3,704) 
At 31 December 69,271 61,294 
 
Goodwill 
 
 Consolidated 
 2005  2004 
 (in thousand Baht) 
At 1 January (84) 857 
Addition during the year 143,662 - 
Less write-off (8,174) (941) 
At 31 December 135,404 (84) 

15 Other non-current assets 
 

  Consolidated  The Company
 Note 2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in million Baht) 
Deposit for land  1.00 - 1.00 - 
Prepaid licence fee 30 29.87 31.55 - - 
Others  15.38 24.00 13.80 13.80 
Total  46.25 55.55 14.80 13.80 

 

16 Interest-bearing liabilities 
 
  Consolidated  The Company
 Note 2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in million Baht) 
Current      
Bank overdrafts        
- secured  24.10  9.18  -  - 
- unsecured  141.06  47.12  45.03  28.07 
  165.16  56.30  45.03  28.07 
        
Short-term loans from financial institutions        
- secured  20.00  10.00  -  - 
- unsecured  370.00  -  300.00  - 
  390.00  10.00  300.00  - 
  555.16  66.30  345.03  28.07 
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  Consolidated  The Company
 Note 2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in million Baht) 
Current portion of long-term loans       
- secured  -  -  -  - 
- unsecured  34.00  68.00  -  - 
  34.00  68.00  -  - 
Current portion of unit holders in property 

fund       
- secured  133.96  133.96  -  - 
- unsecured  -  -  -  - 
 5 133.96  133.96  -  - 
Short-term loans from related parties       
- secured  -  -  -  - 
- unsecured  -  -  1,222.00  1,077.00 
 5 -  -  1,222.00  1,077.00 
  723.12  268.26  1,567.03  1,105.07 

 
Non-current       
Long-term loans from financial institutions       
- secured  490.00  10.00  -  - 
- unsecured  -  34.00  -  - 
  490.00  44.00  -  - 
Debentures       
- secured  -  -  -  - 
- unsecured  698.05  -  698.05  - 
 18 698.05  -  698.05  - 
Unit holders in property fund       
- secured  1,270.76  1,404.72  -  - 
- unsecured  -  -  -  - 
 5 1,270.76  1,404.72  -  - 
  2,458.81  1,448.72  698.05  - 
Total  3,181.93  1,716.98  2,265.08  1,105.07 

 
The period to maturity of interest-bearing liabilities, excluding finance lease liabilities, is as 
follows: 

 
  Consolidated  The Company 
  2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Within one year   723.12 268.26 1,567.03 1,105.07 
After one year but within five years  1,413.89 579.84 698.05 - 
After five years  1,044.92 868.88 - - 
Total  3,181.93 1,716.98 2,265.08 1,105.07 
 
Bank overdrafts of subsidiaries were guaranteed by the Company and a related company. 
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Short-term loans from financial institutions 
 
The Company 
 
As at 31 December 2005, the Company has bills of exchange with a local financial institution 
in the amount of Baht 300 million, comprise of bill of exchange amounting to Baht 100 million 
and Baht 200 million, which will be redeemed to maturity in January 2006 and March 2006, 
respectively. 
 
Subsidiaries 
 
Cental Karon Village Co., Ltd. (“CKV”) issued a promissory note to a local financial 
institution in the amount of Baht 10 million. This borrowing is due within 3 years, CKV shall 
issue the new promissory note in every 3-month. 
 
B-R (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“BRT”) issued a promissory note for SME loan, amounting to Baht 
10 million to a local financial institution. BRT has pledged land and construction and partial 
machinery as collateral for the said loan. 
 
Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) issued a promissory note to a local financial 
institution in the amount of Baht 60 million which will be due in January 2006. 
 
Long-term loan 
 
Subsidiaries 
 

1. On 11 March 2004, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) had entered into a long-term loan 
agreement with a local commercial bank amounting to Baht 200 million. The agreement has a 36-
month period, and the principal should be repaid semi-annually since the first loan installment is 
withdrawn, totaling 6 installments. The first 5 installments are paid at Baht 34 million each, and the 
last installment is paid at Baht 30 million. The first principal repayment is on 29 September 2004, 
while the interest is paid separately on a monthly basis. The interest rate for first and second year is 
fixed at 3.5% per annum and for the third year onward at the Minimum Loan Rate (MLR), 
announced by this bank, minus 1.5% per annum. CRG has given a commitment that so long as 
CRG has the said outstanding debt owed to the Bank, whatever the amount, still exists, the property 
and the leasehold right currently available or to be available in the future will not be disposed of, 
transferred, or any commitment created in the said assets in the total amount of value of Baht 20 
million per year, without any prior consent in writing from the Bank. This will not include the 
assets already committed by CRG prior to the date of giving this commitment. 
 
As at 31 December 2005 and 2004, the amount of loan balance according to the agreement was 
Baht 34 million and Baht 102 million, respectively. 
 

2. On 22 December 2003, Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. (“CKBR”) entered into a long-term loan 
agreement with a local commercial bank amounting to Baht 500 million. The agreement is for 9 
years commencing from the date that the first loan installment is drawn down.  The principal is 
repayable in quarterly basis totalling 24 installments (for the 1st quarter to the 12th quarter, no 
repayment is made). 
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The principal is repaid beginning from February 2008, which is the 13th quarter since the first 
drawdown of the loan, as follows : 

 
Installment  Installment amount  Total installment paid 

  (In million Baht)  (In million Baht) 
     

1 to 4  10  40 
5 to 8  15  60 
9 to 12  20  80 

13 to 16  25  100 
17 to 24  27.5  220 

    500 
 

Interest is separately paid on a monthly basis. CKBR has mortgaged its land and construction as 
collateral for the loan. On 5 November 2004, CKBR drewdown the first installment of the loan 
amounting to Baht 10 million. 
 
As at 31 December 2004, the amount of loan balance was Baht 10 million. On 7 March 2005, 
CKBR refinanced this loan by issuing a promissory note in the amount of Baht 10 million to the 
said commercial bank, which will mature on 1 March 2006. However, the said promissory note can 
be renewed for no more than 180 days each and the last promissory note shall be due no later than 
29 February 2008 or according to the period that the Bank of Thailand may change in the future. 
 
As at 31 December 2005, the amount of loan balance according to the agreement was Baht 500 
million comprising promissory note of Baht 10 million and long-term loan of Baht 490 million. 
 

3 On 20 December 2005, Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CWH”) entered into a long-term loan 
agreement with a local financial institution in the amount of Baht 2,300 million. The agreement 
required CWH to draw the total amount of loan within June 2008, and if beyond the said period 
CWH’s right in withdrawing the loan is ceased. The interest rate for the day from which the loan is 
withdrawn for the first time until 30 September 2009, is at the Minimum Loan Rate (MLR) minus 
1.75% per annum and from 1 October 2009 onward at the Minimum Loan Rate (MLR) minus 
1.50% per annum. The said interest will be paid on a monthly basis, the first interest payment is on 
the last operating date of the month on which the loan is withdrawn for the first time. The principal 
is repayable quarterly, totaling 32 installments, at Baht 71,875,000 each. The first principal 
repayment starts on the last operating date of September 2009 and the total amount of loan to be 
fully repaid within the last operating day of June 2017. 

 
As collaterals for repayment of loan, CWH has to proceed as follow: 
 

- Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited has to guarantee for the said loan in the credit line of 
not less than Baht 2,350 million on the agreement date. However, if CWH has an outstanding loan 
balance not over Baht 1,000 million and never default, CWH has the rights to cancel the said 
guarantee. 

 
- The Thai Business Fund 4 must transfer the partial leasehold rights which is the location of Central 

World Hotel between the Crown Property Bureau and Thai Business Fund 4. As guarantee for the 
debt repayment by CWH, Thai Business Fund 4 signs an agreement to use the leasehold rights as 
collateral together with the Crown Property Bureau signing the consent document to use the 
leasehold right as a collateral. CWH has to complete the said process before the first day on which 
the loan will be withdrawn 
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- CWH has to transfer the sublease land agreement together with building and future construction on 
the said land, including the building and construction only the portion of the conference and 
exhibition centre, banquet and convention hall which are built in the shopping centre of Central 
World project of Thai Business Fund 4, according to the sublease hotel building agreement dated 
28 April 2005 between Thai Business Fund 4 and CWH. As guarantee for the repayment, CWH has 
to registered the said sublease agreement with an authorized officer including the Thai Business 
Fund 4 and the Crown Property Bureau have to sign the consent letter to use the sublease’s right as 
collateral. CWH has to complete the said process before the day on which the first portion of loan 
will be withdrawn. 

 
- Under the conditions of the said loan agreement which restrict Central Plaza Hotel Public Company 

Limited to maintain the debt to equity ratio not to exceed 1.5 : 1 and CWH must not incur any 
liabilities or commitments which would make borrower, at any point of time, having the total 
outstanding exceeding Baht 50 million, unless the lender gives a consent in writing. 
 
As at 31 December 2005, CWH has not made the first withdrawal. 
 
Unused credit facilities 

 
The Company and subsidiaries have unused credit facilities as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 of 
Baht 2,601 million and Baht 910 million, respectively. 
 
 

17 Other current liabilities 
 
  Consolidated  The Company 
 Note 2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in million Baht) 
Deposits   46.64 45.15 15.96  19.82 
Retention  34.22 8.90 -  - 
Provision for liabilities 5 8.04 8.04 8.04  8.04 
Other  61.42 60.37 27.43  26.49 
Total  150.32 122.46 51.43  54.35 

 
18 Debentures, net 
 

As at 10 November 2005, the Company has issued debentures under the name of “debentures of 
Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited No. 1/2005, redemption to maturity in the year 2007”, 
specified the holder name, insubordinated and without collateral and agent for the unit holder for 
the period of 1 year 11 months 20 days commencing from the issuing date. The debentures are 
redeemed to maturity on 30 October 2007. 400,000 units were issued, at the par value of Baht 1,000 
per unit, amounting to Baht 400 million. Interest is payable on 30 April and 30 October of each 
year throughout the debentures term at the rate of 5.73% per annum. The first-payment of interest is 
on 30 April 2006 and the last-payment of interest will be made on maturity date. 
 
As at 30 November 2005, the Company has issued debentures under the name of “debentures of 
Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited No. 2/2005, redemption to maturity in the year 2007”, 
specified the holder name, insubordinated and without collateral and agent for the unit holders for 
the period of 1 year 7 months commencing from the issuing date. The debentures are redeemed to 
maturity on 30 June 2007. 300,000 units were issued at the par value of Baht 1,000 per unit, 
amounting to Baht 300 million. Interest is payable on 30 June and 30 December of each year 
throughout the debentures term at the rate of 4% per annum. The first-payment of interest was made 
on 30 December 2005 and the last payment of interest will be made on maturity date. 
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Under the conditions of debenture issuance, the Company has to maintain liability and equity ratio 
of not more than 1.75 : 1 as at the ending period of each year, calculated from the consolidated 
financial statements. And the Company will not mortgage, pledge, transfer of right as a pledge, 
giving preferential right or any actions which cause commitments, either all or partly in the 
Company’s assets or revenue, as it is now or in the future, as a collateral to any liabilities either to 
increase the Company’s collateral or other’s. The Company may not transfer or dispose of assets or 
right which is material in business operation, except that such action will not result in material 
negative effects in redeeming The Company’s debentures. In addition the Company may not pay 
dividend in any form except the share dividend in last year to the shareholders of the Company in 
the amount over 60% of net profit in the year including a decrease in paid off share capital of the 
Company and decline a loan to other person or a guarantee for indemnity, aval, except it is for the 
normal operation of the Company. 
 
The Company incurred expenses in issuing debentures, in the total amount of Baht 2.09 million, 
which the Company will amortise as expense over the debenture period. The Company recognised 
as expenses in the amount of Baht 0.14 million. As at 31 December 2005, the Company has an 
outstanding deferred issuing debenture expense of Baht 1.95 million which was presented in net 
value from debentures as follows: 
 
  Consolidated  The Company
 Note 2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
       
Debentures  700,000  -  700,000  - 
Less deferred expense in issuing debentures  (1,953)  -  (1,953)  - 
Debentures, net  698,047  -  698,047  - 

 
19 Share capital  

 
 Par 2005  2004 
 value Number Baht  Number Baht 
 (in Baht) (in million) 
Authorised    
At 1 January    
- ordinary shares 10 - - 90 900
- ordinary shares 5 180 900 - - 
Change in par-value 5 - - 180 - 
At 31 December    
- ordinary shares 5 180  900  180  900
       
Issued and fully paid    
At 1 January    
- ordinary shares 10 - - 90 900
- ordinary shares 5 180 900 - - 
Change in par-value 5 - - 180 - 
At 31 December       
- ordinary shares 5 180 900 180 900
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The Company  
 
At the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on 22 April 2004, the shareholders unanimously 
resolved to change the par value of the Company’s shares from Baht 10 to Baht 5, and to amend the 
Memorandum of Association of the Company in accordance with this change of par value. 
 

20 Reserves 
 

The Company 
 
Share premium 
 
The share premium account is set up under the provisions of Section 51 of the Public Companies 
Act B.E. 2535, which requires companies to set aside share subscription monies received in excess 
of the par value of the shares issued to a reserve account (“share premium”). The account is not 
available for dividend distribution. 
 
Currency translation reserve 
 
The currency translation reserve comprises of foreign exchange differences arising from translation 
of the financial statements of foreign operations to Thai Baht for preparation of consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
Fair value and revaluation reserve 
 
The fair value and revaluation reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of 
available-for-sale investments until the investment is derecognised, and the surpluses from the 
revaluations of freehold land, buildings and equipment. 
 
Legal reserve 
 
The legal reserve is set up under the provisions of Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 
2535. Section 116 requires that a company shall allocate not less than 5% of its annual net profit, 
less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”), until this 
account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered authorised capital. The legal reserve 
is not available for dividend distribution. 
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21 Segment information 
 
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments. The primary format, business segments, is based on the Group’s management and 
internal reporting structure. 
 
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items 
mainly comprise interest or dividend-earning assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and expenses. 
 
Business segments 
 
The Group comprises the following main business segments: 
 
Segment 1 Hotel 
Segment 2 Food and ice-cream 
Segment 3 Property fund 

 
Business segment results 

 

 
The discontinued operation was the subsidiary operating in hotel business, Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor, which discontinued the operation from 30 June 2005 

 

 Hotel Food and 
ice-cream 

Property fund Total Continuing Discontinued Eliminations Total 

 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 
 (in million Baht) 
Revenue 2,304 2,267 3,894 3,231 411 364 6,609 5,862 24 - (479) (428) 6,154 5,434 
Net profit 90 214 292 204 326 279 708 697 (17) - (155) (156) 536 541 
Land, property and            
   equipment - net 5,452 4,339 880 706 - - 6,332 5,045 4 - (14) (10) 6,322 5,035 
Total assets 14,406 11,239 1,742 1,427 2,038 2,115 18,186 14,781 5 -  (10,121) (8,520) 8,070 6,261 
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22 Other income 
 
 Consolidated  The Company 
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
 (in million Baht) 
Management fee income 14.81 7.44 71.02 65.85 
Rental income 5.10 5.70 - - 
Amortisation of deferred income 14.28 14.28 - - 
Subsidy 13.10 13.04 - - 
Other 36.58 24.90 8.07 5.82 
Total 83.87 65.36 79.09 71.67 

 
23 Provident fund 
 

The Company has established contributory provident funds for its employees. Membership to the 
funds is on a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly based on a certain percentage of the 
employee’s basic salaries depending on the length of employment by the employees and the 
Company. The provident funds are registered with the Ministry of Finance as juristic entities and 
are managed by a licensed Fund Manager. 
 

24 Interest expense 
 
  Consolidated  The Company 
 Note 2005  2004  2005  2004 
  (in thousand Baht) 
Interest paid and payable to:   
- Related parties 5 - - 32,579 28,497
- Financial institutions 26,939 12,722 15,755 2,431
- Debenture holders 4,317 - 4,317 - 
Total finance costs 31,256 12,722 52,651 30,928
Less finance costs capitalised  (6,570) (26) - - 
 24,686 12,696 52,651 30,928

25 Income tax  
 
The Company received a letter according to the Revenue Code dated 26 December 2002 related to 
the submission of income tax for the accounting period from 1 January 1999 to 31 December 1999.  
The Company was reviewed by an officer from the Revenue Department. The Revenue Department 
examined the Company’s documents regarding to the income tax refund for the fiscal year 2000 
and 2001. From the said examination, the Company recorded and paid the additional income tax, 
surcharge, duty fee, surcharge on duty fee and value added tax in 2005, amounting to Baht 29 
million. 
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Income tax reduction 
 
Royal Decree No. 387 B.E. 2544 dated 5 September 2001 grants companies listed on the Stock 
Exchange of Thailand a reduction in the corporate income tax rate from 30% to 25% for taxable 
profit not exceeding Baht 300 million for the five consecutive accounting periods beginning on or 
after enactment. The Company has, accordingly, calculated income tax on the portion of its taxable 
profit for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 not exceeding Baht 300 million at the 25% 
corporate income tax rate. 
 

26 Earnings per share 
 
 Consolidated  The Company 
 2005  2004  2005  2004 
Net profit for the year (thousand Baht) 535,954 541,121 535,954 541,121 
Ordinary shares (thousand shares) 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000 
Earnings per share (Baht) 2.98 3.01 2.98 3.01 
 

27 Promotional privileges 
 

By virtue of the provisions of the Industrial Investment Promotion Act B.E. 2520, a subsidiary, 
Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. (“CKBR”), was granted by the Board of Investment on 4 July 
2000 for certain privileges, which included among other things, exemption from payment of import 
duty on machinery as approved by the Board of Investment. Only import duty on the machinery 
imported within 19 March 2003 will be exempted, In case of delay, this must be permitted by the 
Board of Investment. However, CKBR requested to extend the import period until 19 March 2006. 
 
As a promoted company, the subsidiary must comply with certain conditions provided for in the 
promotional certificate. CKBR has had income under the said promotional privileges since 25 
December 2005. 
 

28 Dividends 
 
The Company 
 
At the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on 27 April 2005, the shareholders unanimously 
approved the distribution of dividends for the year ended 31 December 2004 at Baht 1.25 per share 
(totaling Baht 225 million). 
 
At the ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on 22 April 2004, the shareholders unanimously 
approved the distribution of dividends for the year ended 31 December 2003 at Baht 1.50 per share 
(totaling Baht 135 million). 
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29 Financial instruments 
 

Financial risk management policies 
 

The Group is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and currency 
exchange rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Group 
does not issue derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. 
 
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Group. The Group has a system of 
controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of 
managing the risks. The management continually monitors the Group’s risk management process to 
ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved. 
 
Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of 
the Group’s operations and its cash flows because loan interest rates are mainly fixed. The Group is 
primarily exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowings (Note 16). The Group mitigates this risk 
by ensuring that the majority of its borrowings are at fixed interest rates. 
 
Foreign currency risk 
 
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchases and sales which are 
denominated in foreign currencies. 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to 
settle its financial and contractual obligations to the Group as and when they fall due. 
 
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing 
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.  At 
the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.  The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance 
sheet. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed 
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of 
fluctuations in cash flows. 
 
Fair values 
 
The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  In determining the fair value of its 
financial assets and liabilities, the Group takes into account its current circumstances and the costs 
that would be incurred to exchange or settle the underlying financial instrument. 
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30 Long term contracts  
 
30.1 Long-term lease agreements  
 

The Company 
 
On 3 December 2003 the Company entered into Memorandum of Understanding with Central 
World Tower Co., Ltd. (“CWT”) wherefore office of the Crown Property Bureau, the owner of the 
land of Central World Plaza, had entered into land and building lease agreement with Thai Business 
Fund 4 (“Fund”) and the Fund entered into land and building sublease agreement with CWT. CWT 
intend to cancel the land and building sublease agreement and need the Company to enter directly 
into land and building sublease with the Fund for the right to lease or sublease in construction and 
hotel development of Central World Plaza Project. As guarantee that the Company will join with 
CWT for the said project, the Company agreed to pay retention of Baht 5 million on the 
memorandum date. CWT agreed to repay the retention back to the Company on the date that the 
Company enters into the agreement with the Fund. 
 
On 28 April 2005, Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. (“CWH”), which is a subsidiary of the Company, 
entered into a sublease of hotel land and building with Thai Business Fund 4 to develop and to 
operate a hotel or other related businesses. CWH is required to pay rental in advance and annual 
rental fee of Baht 1,188.75 million to the Fund up to the end of the agreement on 22 December 
2032. CWH has already paid the rental in advance upon signing the agreement in the amount of 
Baht 275 million. In addition, CWT agreed to refund the Company for the said retention of Baht 5 
million. 
 
Subsidiaries 
 

- On 4 October 1985, a subsidiary, Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd. (“CHBR”), entered into a 
lease agreement with the State Railway of Thailand (SRT) covering land, hotel buildings and 
premises of the Hua Hin Railway Hotel for thirty (30) years, expiring on 15 January 2016. The 
agreement will be automatically renewable for an additional period of 3 years and 4 months and has 
two additional renewable options of 15 years each. CHBR has to pay rent at an amount stipulated in 
the agreement commencing on 15 January 1986. In addition, CHBR has to comply with the 
conditions stipulated in the agreement by placing bank guarantees to SRT as follows:  
 
a. Baht 2.5 million to guarantee the execution of the agreement.  
 
b. Guaranteed amount, which is equal to one year's rental fee. 
 
c. Baht 5 million to guarantee the execution of the construction, renovation and repair of the 
hotel buildings in accordance with the agreement.  This bank guarantee will be redeemed when the 
building and premises are transferred to SRT. 
 
Under the terms of the agreement, CHBR has to transfer the ownership of any additions to the 
original buildings and premises including any additional fixtures to SRT. 
 

- Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd.(“CRG”) entered into a sublease building agreement with a 
company for a three year period from 1 September 2001 to 31 August 2004.  Rental income for the 
first year was Baht 737,688 with an additional 5% for the second and third year respectively. 
 
On 1 September 2004, the said agreement was renewed for the period commencing from 1 
September 2004 to 25 April 2006. Rental income for the first year was Baht 853,968 per annum, 
with an additional 5% in the second year. 
 

30.2 Long - term service agreements 
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On 31 May 2000, Central Plaza Hotel Public Company Limited and Central Sukhontha Hotel Co., 
Ltd. entered into an agreement with a marketing management company to sell membership cards, 
for a period of 3 years, commencing from 15 May 2000.  The Company agreed to pay a marketing 
service fee to the contracting party at the rate of profit from the sale of membership cards stipulated 
in the agreement.  The proceeds will be recorded in a “deferred income” account and amortized as 
income in one year, according to the terms of the membership card. 
 
On 10 June 2003, the said agreement was renewed for the period of 3 years, commencing from 16 
June 2003 to 15 June 2006. 

 
30.3 Franchise agreements 
 

Subsidiaries 
 
- On 20 January 2004, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) was granted the right under a 

consent letter of the franchise agreement with Thai Franchising Co., Ltd. and Duskin Co., Ltd., 
which is registered in Japan, whereby the latter allowed CRG to use the trademark “Mister Donut” 
in the Kingdom of Thailand. In consideration thereof, CRG is committed to pay a monthly royalty 
fee at the rate specified in the agreement.  

 
- On 18 September 2003, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) was granted the right under a 

consent letter of the franchise agreement with Central Fast Food Group Co., Ltd. and Yum 
Restaurants International (Thailand) Co., Ltd., on behalf of Kentucky Fried Chicken International 
Holdings Inc., which is registered in the United States of America, whereby the latter allowed CRG 
to use the trademark “KFC” in the Kingdom of Thailand. In consideration thereof, CRG is 
committed to pay an initial franchise fee in US Dollars for every new operating unit using the 
trademark and to pay a quarterly royalty fee at the percentage rate specified in the agreement. CRG 
has to comply with the terms and conditions as stated in the agreement 

 
- On 23 March 2001, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”), entered into a franchise 

agreement with TJNS (Thailand) Co., Ltd., whereby the latter has allowed CRG to use the 
trademark “Pizza Hut” in the Kingdom of Thailand to operate sales, commencing from 1 April 
2001. In consideration thereof, CRG is committed to pay an initial franchise fee for every new 
outlet opened, and a monthly royalty fee at the percentage rate specified in the agreement.  CRG 
has to comply with the terms and conditions as stated in the agreement. 

 
- On 2 October 2003, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) has been granted the right under 

a consent letter of a development agreement, rights agreement and trademarks agreement with Food 
Novelties Co., Ltd. and a foreign company, which has permitted CRG to use trademarks, rights and 
development rights to establish and operate sales outlets for pretzels and beverages under the name 
“AUNTIE ANNE’S”. According to the terms of the contracts, CRG is committed to pay a franchise 
fee and initial fee for every new outlet. In addition, CRG has to pay for franchise and advertisement 
expenses, at the agreed percentage of the sales volume. This agreement is in force until 15 May 
2012.  CRG has to comply with the terms and conditions as stated in the agreement.  

 
- In September 2003, B-R (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“BRT”) has entered into a license agreement with 

Baskin-Robbins International Company Limited (“BRINT”) for 20 years commencing 22 
September 2003. BRINT will grant a license to BRT in respect of the rights in operation and the 
trademark such that the BRT may use in the manufacture, distribution and marketing of the product 
in the territory and BRT shall pay a license and technical assistance fee as stated in the agreement. 
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30.4 Exclusive supply agreements  
 

Subsidiaries 
 

On 6 September 2005, Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) entered into an Exclusive 
Supply Agreement with two local companies to be supplied carbonated beverage to “Pizza Hut” 
and “KFC” outlets operated by the company in Thailand. The agreement is for a period of 6 years, 
commencing on 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2010. Under the terms of this agreement, CRG is 
required to comply with the conditions and restrictions specified therein. In consideration thereof, 
CRG received a subsidy, which has been recorded as “Deferred Income” in the consolidated 
balance sheets. This deferred income is recognized as income by the straight line method over the 
period of 6 years. In addition, CRG also receives incentive based on purchase volume as prescribed 
in the said agreement. 

 
30.5 Management agreements 
 

The Company 
 

On 17 December 2004, the Company entered into a management agreement with Duangtawan 
Hotel Co., Ltd. (“Hotel”) to supervise and direct the management and operation of the Hotel for 10-
year period commencing on 1 January 2005. Under the term of the agreement, the Company shall 
be compensated with the management fee which comprise of Base Management Fee and Incentive 
Management Fee at the rate specified in the agreement. 

 
On 28 December 2004, the Company entered into a Reciprocation agreement under hotel 
improvement, regarding the construction and renovation of the Duangtawan Hotel Co., Ltd. in 
accordance with details and related documents concerning to the development and improvement of 
the infrastructure of the hotel in the amount which is not exceeding Baht 50 million, to be repaid 
within 5-year period commencing from the agreement date. The said amount is pledged by share of 
Duangtawan Hotel Co., Ltd. with par value of Baht 137.5 million, and guaranteed by a person 
which is both a shareholder/directors of Duangtawan Hotel Co., Ltd. The Company has made the 
first payment on the agreement date of Baht 25 million. Compensation fee is charged quarterly at 
the rate of MLR of a commercial bank minus 1%. 
 
As at 31 December 2005, the receivable under the said reciprocation agreement in the amount of 
Baht 46.25 million. 

 
31 Reciprocation agreement under construction of hotel 
 

Subsidiary 
 

On 14 February 2005, Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. (“CKBR”) entered into a reciprocation 
agreement under construction of hotel building with five contractors, to provide financial support 
for the purchase of construction materials and equipments. The total amount under the contracts 
was Baht 67.53 million. CKBR granted the amount stated in the contract on the agreement date. 
The total amount granted is to be returned by October 2005 together with a compensation fee 
equivalent to interest at 3.5% per annum. The contractors agreed that CKBR deduct the money 
from payment of construction installments according to the construction agreement under the 
Central Krabi Bay Resort project as a repayment of this reciprocation agreement at the rate between 
10%-28%. In order to guarantee the said repayment of debt, CKBR agreed to have the personal 
guarantee by the directors of the five contractors as collateral as if they were debtors. 
 
As at 31 December 2005, receivable under the said agreement was Baht 7.23 million. 
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32 Commitments and contingent liabilities 
 

As at 31 December 2005, the Company and its subsidiaries had commitments and contingent 
liabilities   as follows: 
 
The Company 

 
32.1 The Company and its subsidiaries were contingently liable for letters of guarantee issued by two 

local banks for guaranteeing the Company and subsidiaries in favor of two government agencies 
and various state enterprises totaling Baht 39.59 million. 

 
32.2 The Company had outstanding commitments from entering into the purchase and sale agreements 

of two pieces of land, in the amount of Baht 64.26 million. 
 
32.3 The Company had a contingent liability in respect of legal action being under taken against the 

Company by former employee amounting to approximately Baht 3.3 million because the 
employment contract was ended. Presently, this court case is under the judgment of the Court. The 
Company provision for possible loss has recorded for in the financial statements for the year ended 
of Baht 0.95 million. 

 
Subsidiaries 

 
32.4 Central Krabi Bay Resort Co., Ltd. had outstanding commitments in connection with hotel 

construction contracts amounting to approximately Baht 188.28 million. 
 
32.5 Central World Hotel Co., Ltd. had outstanding commitments in connection with hotel construction 

contracts amounting to approximately Baht 1,028.51 million. 
 
32.6 Central Wong Amat Beach Resort, a branch of Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd., had 

outstanding commitments in connection with hotel construction contracts amounting to 
approximately Baht 42.24 million 

 
32.7 Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) entered into a purchase of raw materials agreement 

with three suppliers in Thailand for 12 months starting on 1 January 2004. CRG agreed to purchase 
raw material in accordance with price and quantity that were specified in the contract. At the 
contract date, CRG agreed to pay Baht 27.6 million as an advance payment, which would be offset 
as part of the material payment for the last month. 

 
The said agreement expired in December 2004, CRG and the five suppliers agreed to renew the 
agreement for another 12 months, which expired in December 2005. The said agreement is in the 
process of renewal. 

 
32.8 Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) had long-term lease and service agreements with 

other local companies for periods of 3 years to 15 years and 6 months for using as operation office. 
According to the terms of the agreements, CRG has to pay monthly rental and service charges at 
fixed rates or at certain percentages of gross sales. 
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As at 31 December 2005, CRG is committed to pay monthly rental and service charges at fixed 
rates, as follows : 

 
 (in million Baht) 
Less than 1 year 89 
Over 1 year but less than 3 years 84 
Over 3 years 45 
Total 218 

 
32.9 In September 2003, B-R (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“BRT”) entered into a master franchise and territorial 

development agreement with Baskin-Robbins International Company Limited (“BRINT”), whereby 
BRINT will grant the right to BRT to develop and operate stores in the territory and to franchise 
both affiliated parties and unaffiliated third parties. The agreement is effective for a period of 20 
years. BRT agreed to pay the quarterly royalty fee at the rate as stated in the agreement based on 
gross sales and monthly royalty fee at the rate and conditions as stated in the agreement. 

 
32.10 B-R (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (“BRT”) entered into co-packing agreement with two other companies for 

a period of one year commenced on 1 January 2005 and another company for 3 years period 
commenced on 25 March 2005. BRT has committed to produce and supply the product under the 
conditions of the agreements. 

 
As at 31 December 2005, the said agreements with two other companies are under the renewal 
process. 

 
32.11 Central Maritime Hotel, Dili, East Timor (“CMHD”) has a commitment from entering into a license 

agreement with the United Nations Transitional Administration in East Timor (UNTAET). Rental is 
charged at the rate of 2.75% of the gross sales. 

 
On 17 June 2005, the Republic Democratic of East Timor-Leste and CMHD mutually agreed to 
regularize the occupation of stated owned immovable property. The negotiated amount for land 
rental for the period between January 2001 and June 2004 was US$ 100,000 and also the land rental 
for the period between July 2004 and June 2005 was charged at 1% of the gross revenue. Therefore, 
CMHD recorded reversal of accrued land rental of US$ 178,178. 
 
CMHD suspended the hotel operation since 30 June 2005. As a consequence, CMHD had no 
operating revenue in the second half of the year 2005. 
 

32.12 Income tax regulations in East Timor have not been officially issued, and could be adjusted and 
changed, so CMHD has recorded estimated income tax according to the latest information 
available.  The resulting liability, if any, arising from this matter cannot be presently determined. 

 
During the years 2002 and 2003, CMHD received letters from Commissioner and Deputy 
Commissioner - Large Business of Democratic Republic of East Timor, respectively, regarding 
information and outstanding tax issues as follows: 

 
- Loss carried forward for the year 2000 and lease of vessel 
 

The tax return for the year 2001, showed a different figure for 2000 tax losses brought forward 
from the loss carried forward as shown in 2000 tax return. This was because the lease fee for vessel 
was not allowed as a tax deductible expense. 
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However, in the third quarter of 2004, CMHD paid the said related tax liability to the 
Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner - Large Business of Democratic Republic of East Timor 
in the amount of US$ 326,283.75. 

 
- Service tax  
 

Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner - Large Business of Democratic Republic of East Timor 
informed CMHD that CMHD’s service tax submission was under-declared and not in compliance 
with the regulation and interpretation.  
 
However, CMHD has estimated and recorded the service tax in accordance with to the regulation 
and interpretation by using gross receipts from customers multiplied by service tax rate under an 
accrual basis. In addition, CMHD agreed to pay the said tax according to the acceptance letter dated 
16 September 2003, from Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner - Large Business of 
Democratic Republic of East Timor. 

 
- Wages tax reconciliation for the year 2001  
 

CMHD submitted a wage tax shortfall in the amount of US$ 36,190. However, as at 31 December 
2003 CMHD has estimated and recorded the wages tax to cover the said amount. In addition, 
CMHD agreed to pay the said tax according to the acceptance letter issued dated 16 September 
2003, from Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner - Large Business of Democratic Republic of 
East Timor. 

 
On 16 September 2003 Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner - Large Business of Democratic 
Republic of East Timor issued a letter to CMHD as acceptance for the receipt of payment from 
CMHD for service tax since September 2000 to December 2002 amounting to US$ 115,800.25; 
wage tax for the year 2001 amounting US$ 36,190; and corporate income tax for the year 2002 
amounting to US$ 22,023. Total tax payable of US$ 174,013.25.  CMHD will pay these arrears in 4 
quarterly installments of US$ 43,503.31 each from September 2003 until June 2004. CMHD 
completely paid such installments in November 2004. 
 
CMHD has received a letter dated 23 November 2004 from Commissioner and Deputy 
Commissioner - Large Business of Democratic Republic of East Timor to remind CMHD of the late 
payment penalty amounting to US$ 38,980. As at 31 December 2004, CMHD recorded this penalty 
in the amount of US$ 21,244. 
 
On 19 June 2005, Appeals Manager, East Timor Revenue Service issued the letter to CMHD in 
respect of the aforesaid penalty tax which were reduced to US$ 14,352 therefore, CMHD has 
reversed the accrued penalty tax transaction of US$ 6,892. 

 
32.13 In May 2004, there was a fire incident at spa of Central Hua Hin Beach Resort (“CHBR”). The net 

book value of damaged fixed assets was approximately Baht 6.45 million. 
 
On 23 June 2005, CHBR received compensation from the insurance company in the amount of 
Baht 12.89 million. However, CHBR distributed part of the compensation, amounting to Baht 11.17 
million, to the State Railway of Thailand as a beneficiary for building and construction, according 
to the insurance policy. The remaining balance, amounting to Baht 1.72 million, for the furnitures 
and fixtures, belonged to CHBR.  
 
On 16 December 2005, CHBR received the compensation for the business interruption from the 
insurance company in the amount of Baht 4.07 million. CHBR recorded gain from compensation 
net from the net book value of damaged assets in the amount of Baht 9.16 million. 
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32.14 Central Restaurants Group Co., Ltd. (“CRG”) has contingent liabilities on lawsuit from being 
accused for violating the license in alteration and distribution of one type of promotional products. 
Currently, the said lawsuit is under the court judgment. However, CRG was granted an assurance 
document from a person, who claims to be the licensee and allow CRG to alter and distribute the 
product stated above, will take responsibility to compensate a damage incurred from the lawsuit for 
CRG. As a result, CRG did not record any possible loss from the said lawsuit. 

 
33 Revaluation of assets 
 

In the second quarter of 2004, the Company and subsidiaries engaged an independent professional 
valuers to appraise the existing property, buildings and equipment as at 1 May 2004, as follows: 
 

1. The Company and four subsidiaries engaged the independent professional valuers to appraise the 
existing assets as at 1 May 2004, which included land, buildings, and equipment which were 
previously revalued. The Company and the said subsidiaries recorded land, buildings, and 
equipment at the new revalued amounts according to the appraisal report dated 1 May 2004. The 
professional valuers applied the Depreciated Replacement Cost approach. 
 

2. Two subsidiaries engaged the independent professional valuers to appraise all the existing assets as 
at 1 May 2004 which included land, buildings, and equipment which were previously revalued. The 
said two subsidiaries recorded land, buildings, and equipment at the new revalued amounts 
according to the appraisal report dated 1 May 2004. The professional valuers applied the Income 
Approach since the revalued amounts by the Depreciated Replacement Cost approach resulted in a 
higher value. 
 

3. One subsidiary engaged the independent professional valuers to appraise the existing leasehold 
rights as at 1 May 2004, which included the leasehold right that was previously revalued. The said 
subsidiary recorded the leasehold right at the new revalued amounts according to the appraisal 
report dated 1 May 2004. The professional valuers applied the Return on Investment approach. 
 

4. One subsidiary engaged the independent professional valuers to appraise the value of the existing 
land and construction as at 1 May 2004. The said subsidiary recorded land and building and 
improvement at the new revalued amounts according to the appraisal report dated 1 May 2004, in 
which the professional valuers applied the Depreciated Replacement Cost approach. 
 
In the third quarter of 2004, a subsidiary, Central Samui Village Co., Ltd. (“CSV”), engaged the 
independent professional valuers to appraise the value of the 2 pieces of existing land and 
construction which were not revalued in the second quarter. The professional valuers applied the 
Sale Comparison Approach for land and Depreciated Replacement Cost approach for construction. 
The said subsidiary recorded land and building at the new revalued amounts according to the 
appraisal report dated 1 May 2004, resulting in the revaluation surplus of land of CSV as at 30 
April 2004 increased by approximately Baht 15.9 million. This revaluation surplus could not be 
used for dividend payment. The gain on reversal of loss on assets revaluation previously recognised 
amounted to approximately Baht 4.4 million 
 
The assets appraisals stated above, both in the second quarter and the third quarter, resulted in an 
increase in the valuation of the Company and the subsidiaries’ land, buildings, and equipment in 
consolidated financial statements as on that date in the amount of Baht 337.6 million. The 
revaluation surplus could not be used for dividend payment. The gain on reversal of loss on assets 
revaluation previously recognised net of loss realized for the current period amounted to 
approximately Baht 1.0 million. 
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34 Discontinuation of operation of subsidiary’s branch 
 

On 17 May 2005, Central Wong Amat Beach Resort, a branch of Central Hua Hin Beach Resort 
Co., Ltd. (“CHBR”), suspended its operation in order to rebuild its hotel. CHBR recorded loss on 
disposal of building and other constructions, inventories and hotel operating equipment amounting 
to Baht 22.79 million. 

 
Central Wong Amat Beach Resort, a branch of Central Hua Hin Beach Resort Co., Ltd., paid the 
compensation for demolition of the hotel building to Thai Pattana Fund 2 (“Fund”), in accordance 
with the land and hotel buildings lease agreement dated 23 December 2003. The amount to be paid 
by the lessee to the lessor under the agreement is equal to the revalued amounts, calculated by the 
Replacement Value, of buildings or part of the buildings demolished. Independent professional 
valuers, N&A Appraisal Co., Ltd., revalued the existing property of Central Wong Amat Beach 
Resort as at 31 March 2005 by applying the Depreciated Replacement Cost Value approach as 
stated in the appraisal report dated 10 May 2005. The revalued value of the demolished building 
and parts of building belonging to the Fund was approximately Baht 45.8 million. The subsidiary 
has already recorded the said compensation. 

 
35 Unit holder in property fund equity 
 

As at 31 December 2005 and 2004, unit holder equity consisted of investment of unit holder type A, 
which guaranteed for payment by the Company. Dividend payment is for such type of unit holders 
calculated at the percentage of the latest net asset value per unit as specified in the unit holder 
agreement. 

 
36 Events after the balance sheet date 
 

Legal action has been taken against the Company by former employees for amounts totalling 
approximately Baht 1.2 million. On 25 January 2006, the court required the Company to pay the 
said compensation in the amount net of withholding income tax of Baht 1.12 million. The Company 
paid the said compensation on 31 January 2006. The Company has recorded the said compensation 
in the statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2005. 
 

37 Reclassification of accounts 
 
Certain accounts in the 2004 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the 
presentation in the 2005 financial statements. 

 




